MINUTES CITY COUNCIL MEETING Bonners Ferry High School Auditorium 267-3105 October 20, 2020 6:30 pm

Mayor Dick Staples called the Council meeting of October 20, 2020 to order at 6:01 pm. Present for the meeting were: Council Members Rick Alonzo, Adam Arthur, Valerie Thompson and Ron Smith. Also present were: City Clerk/Treasurer Christine McNair, City Administrator Lisa Ailport, City Police Chief Brian Zimmerman, City Attorney Andrakay Pluid and City Engineer Mike Klaus. Members of the public present were: Jerry Higgs, Marciavee Cossette, Denise Crichton, John Brantly, Jeff Clark, Bobby Read Jr., Caleb Davis, Warren Campbell, Fay Almond, Cheryl Clark, Rebecca Huseby, Dennis Lyons, Kathy Wenzel, Rob Wenzel, Barbara Russell, Ed Earnest, Randy Lunsford, Mark Moseley, Fred Zobel, Patrick Murphy, Henry Yoder, Kerry Field, Dan Fuller, Clarice McKenney, Dave Gray, Victoria Rogers, Jeff Willard, Amy Roemelen, Roger Nayler, Barbara Hinderlie, Carolyn Testa, John Birrell, Steve Tanner, Mark Quinn, Elana Quinn, Travis Lockwood, Lynda Fioravanti, Steve Fioravanti, David Clark, Gerry Ann Howlett, Steve Howlett, Nevin Neal, Victor Martinez, Elsie Hollenbeck, Kelly Bell Barb Castellan, Jan Bayer and Cal Bateman

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

<u>GUEST</u> Jan Bayer and Cal Bateman with the Boundary County School District regarding the Maintenance and Operation Levy Jan Bayer said they are asking for a renewal of the maintenance and operation levy. This is the same amount for the third time. The 2.4 million is 21% of the general fund. There are three elementary schools, one middle school and one high school. The levy is important to support any technology related items, to retain and recruit qualified teachers, to offer courses, to keep class sizes down and to provide transportation. Cal Bateman said the PowerPoint presentation is on the school district's website. Cal said for every dollar spent \$.85 goes toward salaries and benefits. Jan said the rate has decreased from \$2.35 per \$1,000 to \$1.87 per \$1,000. Mayor Staples asked how enrollment affects the money received from the State. Jan said the funding is based on Average Daily Attendance (ADA), when students don't go to school less funding is received. The State board has agreed to fund based on enrollment instead of ADA due to COVID. The funding decreases approximately \$30.00 per day per student that is absent. Jan is hopeful the community will support the renewal of the levy.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Elsie Hollenbeck, Jerry Higgs, Barbara Russell and Clarice McKenney spoke in favor of the Vision Statement.

John Brantly, Jeff Clark, Bobby Read Jr., Caleb Davis, Travis Lockwood, Warren Campbell, Fay Almond, Cheryl Clark, Rebecca Huseby, Dennis Lyons, Cathy Wenzel, Rob Wenzel, Steve Fiorvanti, Ed Earnest, Lynda Fiorvanti, Randy Lunsford, Mark Moseley, David Clark, Fred Zoebel, Patrick Murphy, Henry Yoder, Kerry Field, Dan Fuller, Steve Tanner, Elana Quinn, Mark Quinn, Jeff Willard, Amy Roemelen spoke in opposition to the Vision Statement.

Dave Gray said the second sentence is a mission statement.

Mayor Staples took a 10-minute break 8:00 pm. Mayor Staples resumed the meeting at 8:10 pm.

Mayor Staples moved item #11 above Reports.

1. City - Discuss the Vision Statement (action item)

Mayor Staples said tonight will be the last night that public comment will be taken on the Vision Statement. Emails and written comments regarding the Vision Statement are still allowed.

Valerie Thompson wonders why adding the words sexual orientation and gender identity causes such outrage. Valerie said the Vision Statement reminds Council of their legislative and judicial responsibilities to act without prejudice. The Vision Statement was to emphasize being kind and accepting of all people. Ron Smith said Andrakay Pluid said the City is not required to list anything on the meeting agenda other than the portions required to give adequate notice to the public regarding the meeting contents. Ron Smith moved to replace the current Vision Statement with: Bonners Ferry, "The Friendliest City", strives to achieve balanced growth, builds on community strengths, respects natural resources, promotes excellence in Government and values quality of life. We are a city that welcomes all people. Rick Alonzo seconded the motion. Rick said the words "all people" doesn't leave any person or group out. We will continue to treat all people equally in the City of Bonners Ferry. The motion passed. Ron Smith – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Valerie Thompson – no, Adam Arthur – no, Mayor Staples – yes

REPORTS

City Administrator Lisa Ailport said the interviews for the Street employee will be tomorrow. The Water/Sewer position has been posted with a closing date of November 13, 2020. The RFP process is progressing. The Hydro Bond will close tomorrow. City Engineer Mike Klaus said the vegetation clearing along the dike will be completed by next week. The southside dike from the Kootenai River Bridge to the western City limits has been cleared, as well as the northside dike from the sewer lagoons to the Galbraith residence. The last section from the Kootenai River Inn to the eastern City limits will start tomorrow. The wellhouse is almost complete. Valerie Thompson asked if the Army Corp of Engineers is being updated regarding the dike. Mike said they are. Mike said there are some conduits that need to be video.

CONSENT AGENDA - {action item}

- Call to Order/Roll Call
- 3. Approval of Bills and Payroll
- 4. Approval of the October 6, 2020 Council meeting minutes
- 5. Treasurer's Report

Rick Alonzo moved to approved the consent agenda. Ron Smith seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur – yes, Valerie Thompson – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Ron Smith – yes

OLD BUSINESS

6. **Planning and Zoning** – Consider recommendation from Planning and Zoning for File #AM013-20 for Planned Unit Development (attachment) {action item}

Lisa summarized the staff report. Valerie Thompson moved to approve file #AM013-20, amending Bonners Ferry City Code, Title 11, to repeal Chapter 8, Planned Unit Development Agreements, and adopt a new Chapter 8, Planned Unit Developments, finding that it is in accord with the general and specific goals and standards of the City of Bonners Ferry's Comprehensive Plan, as enumerated in the findings and reasoned statements below. Valerie further moved to adopt the following reasoned statement as written. The amendment is supported by the City of Bonners Ferry's Comprehensive Plan. Rick Alonzo seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur – yes, Valerie Thompson – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Ron Smith – yes

7. **Planning and Zoning** – Have the first reading of the Planned Unit Development Ordinance #597 by Title Only (attachment) {action item}

Rick Alonzo moved to have the first reading of the Planned Unit Development Ordinance #597 by title only. Ron Smith seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur – yes, Valerie Thompson – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Ron Smith – yes. Lisa read the ordinance by title only.

- 8. **Planning and Zoning** Suspend the reading rules and adopt the Planned Unit Development Ordinance #597 (action item) Rick Alonzo moved to suspend the reading rules and adopt the Planned Unit Development Ordinance #597. Adam Arthur seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur yes, Valerie Thompson yes, Rick Alonzo yes, Ron Smith yes
- Planning and Zoning Consider recommendation from Planning and Zoning for File #AM012-20 for Off-Site Parking (attachment) {action item}

Lisa summarized the staff report. Valerie Thompson asked if this will help the Farmer's Market. Lisa said the Farmer's Market is in a parking lot, so she doesn't feel this applies to them. Adam Arthur moved to approve file #012-20, amending Bonners Ferry City Code, Title 11, regarding off-street parking standards, finding that it is in accordance with the general and specific goals and standards of the City of Bonners Ferry's Comprehensive Plan, as enumerated in the findings and reasoned statements below. Adam further moved to adopt the following reasoned statement as written. The amendment is supported by the City of Bonners Ferry's Comprehensive Plan. Valerie Thompson seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur – yes, Valerie Thompson – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Ron Smith – yes

10. Planning and Zoning – Have the first reading of the Off-Site Parking Ordinance #598 by Title Only (attachment) {action item}

Rick Alonzo moved to have the first reading of the Off-Site Parking Ordinance #598 by title only. Ron Smith seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur – yes, Valerie Thompson – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Ron Smith – yes

- 11. **Planning and Zoning** Suspend the reading rules and adopt the Off-Site Parking Ordinance #598 (action item) Valerie Thompson moved to suspend the reading rules and adopt the Off-Site Parking Ordinance #598. Rick Alonzo seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur yes, Valerie Thompson yes, Rick Alonzo yes, Ron Smith yes
- 12. **City** Consider a Personnel Policy change regarding job descriptions (attachment) {action item} Lisa is proposing that the appointed position job descriptions will always come before Council, as well as any new position that has been created and any amended duties that will have a fiscal impact. Rick Alonzo moved to implement the Personnel Policy changes as presented by the City Administrator. Valerie Thompson seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur yes, Valerie Thompson yes, Rick Alonzo yes, Ron Smith yes
- 13. City Discuss the Christmas party {action item}

Mayor Staples said since it is new to him, he would like to have a Christmas party. Valerie said her concern is not being able to maintain social distancing with a large group. Adam still wants to recognize the volunteers. Valerie said she wants to recognize the employees as well. Council asked if there were any suggestions. Christine said the suggestion was to give everyone a gift card. Mayor Staples asked if each shop could have a get-together. Lisa said the departments do get-together. Rick Alonzo moved that in-lieu of the Christmas party this year, we provide City personnel and volunteer with a \$25.00 gift card. Ron Smith seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur – yes, Valerie Thompson – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Ron Smith – yes

NEW BUSINESS

14. City - Consider Resolution 2020-10-20 destruction of records (attachment) {action item}

Christine said the Clerk's office went through the records stored in the basement and selected ones that are available for destruction. The State Historical Society was contact and they do not want any of the selected records. Valerie asked if the City Engineer had looked at the selected records. Christine said he did. Ron Smith moved to adopt Resolution 2020-10-20 destruction of records. Valerie Thompson seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur – yes, Valerie Thompson – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Ron Smith – yes

15. City – Consider auditor for FY2020 audit (attachment) {action item}

Christine reviewed the three quotes received. Adam asked if \$750,000 is enough for liability coverage. Andrakay said the typical benchmark is one million dollars, but Council can accept \$750,000. Valerie requested a detailed list from Toni as to why the audit last year cost more. Valerie Thompson moved to table this item until further information is received. Adam Arthur seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur – yes, Valerie Thompson – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Ron Smith – yes

16. **City** – Discuss the Holiday schedule adjustment {action item}

Rick said each year Council tries to do something special for the employees at the holidays. Rick Alonzo moved to give the employees the day after Thanksgiving off and close at Noon on Christmas Eve. Ron Smith seconded the motion. The motion passed. Adam Arthur – yes, Valerie Thompson – yes, Rick Alonzo – yes, Ron Smith – yes

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 9:19 pm.

INFORMATION

City Street and Park Superintendent, Waste Water and Water Plant Operator I, II & III, Street and Park Maintenance Laborer Job Descriptions